
 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

City Hall Annex - Meeting Room - 1412 9th St, Leeds, AL 35094 

February 20, 2024 @ 6:00 PM 

To view this meeting online: 
https://meet.goto.com/CityofLeeds 

 

CALL COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

CUTOFF FOR PUBLIC COMMENT SIGN-UP 
Anyone wishing to address the Council during the Public Comment section of the meeting must have completed 
their registration by this point in the meeting. 

APPROVE COUNCIL MINUTES 

1. Minutes from February 05, 2024 

REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

2. Mayor David Miller 

3. City Administrator Watson 

Over-time Report 

4. City Clerk Arbitelle 

5. Police Chief Irwin 

6. Fire Chief Parsons 

7. Court Magistrate Roberts 

8. Superintendent Williams 

9. Public Works Director Warren 

10. Social Services Director Bryan 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

11. A request for an Alcoholic Beverage License to Guerrero Mexican Grill at 7521 Parkwa Drive; 
Leeds, AL 35094 

OLD BUSINESS: 

12. Executive Session  

13. Resolution 2024-02-04: Consider Approval of Tax Abatement 

NEW BUSINESS: 

14. Resolution 2024-02-06: Consider Approval of Issuance of Restaurant Liquor License to 
Christian A. Millan Salinas, DBA Guerrero Mexican Grill at 7521 Parkway Drive; Leeds AL 
35094 

1



15. Resolution 2024-02-07: Consider Participation with Heidelberg Materials to make Application 
for Climate Pollution Reduction Grant 

16. Resolution 2024-02-08: Consider Budget Amendment to Purchase City Fire Truck 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  
All comments are to be limited to 2 minutes 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, those requiring accommodation for Council 
meetings should notify the City Clerk’s Office at least 24 hours prior to the meeting at 205-699-2585. 

 
If you wish to speak at this meeting, please use the following web address: 

https://www.cognitoforms.com/CityOfLeeds1/PublicParticipationSpeakersSignUpSheet 
QR code to sign up  

 

 

 

2

https://www.cognitoforms.com/CityOfLeeds1/PublicParticipationSpeakersSignUpSheet


File Attachments for Item:

1. Minutes from February 05, 2024

3



Page 1 of 4 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting 

February 05, 2024 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

City Hall Annex - Meeting Room - 1412 9th St, Leeds, AL 35094 

February 05, 2024 @ 6:00 PM 

 

 
CALL COUNCIL MEETING TO ORDER 

Mayor David Miller called the meeting to order at 6:02 pm. 

ROLL CALL / INVOCATION / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PRESENT 
Mayor David Miller 
Council member Kenneth Washington 
Council member Eric Turner 
Council member Johnny Dutton 
Council member Angie Latta 
Council member Devoris Ragland-Pierce 

INVOCATION 
Council member Eric Turner 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor David Miller 

CUTOFF FOR PUBLIC COMMENT SIGN-UP 

APPROVE COUNCIL MINUTES 

1. Minutes from December 18, 2023 

Motion to approve Minutes from December 18, 2023 made by Council member Turner, 
Seconded by Council member Dutton. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member 
Washington, Council member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member Latta, Council 
member Ragland-Pierce 
 

REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

2. Mayor David Miller 

Proclamation - National Leap of Kindness Day February 29, 2024 

Mayor Miller read the proclamation and presented it to Leeds Chamber of Commerce 
Executive Director Sandra McGuire.  

Presentation to Leeds City Schools 

Mayor Miller presented a $500,000 check to Leeds Board of Education for their upcoming 
athletic capital improvements. 

3. City Administrator Watson 

4



Page 2 of 4 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting 

February 05, 2024 

Over-time reports are in the packet. 

4. City Clerk Arbitelle 

No Report 

5. Police Chief Irwin 

Chief Irwin was absent. Lieutenant Scott stated no report. 

6. Fire Chief Parsons 

Chief Parsons was absent. Assistant Chief Courington stated no report. 

7. Court Magistrate Roberts 

No Report 

8. Superintendent Williams 

Absent - Excused 

9. Public Works Director Warren 

No Report 

10. Social Services Director Bryan 

No Report 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

11. Ordinance assenting to the property rezoning at 1901 Hawkins Road from R-1 (Single Family 
Residential) to A-1 (Agricultural) 

Item has been pulled from the agenda and rescheduled for March 4, 2024. 

12. Consider Determination of Certain Conditions to be a Public Nuisance at 1032 Montevallo 
Road 

City Administrator Watson reported that the property is still in non-compliance as of this 
morning. No one else spoke. Item was referred to Council. 

13. Consider Determination of Certain Conditions to be a Public Nuisance at 1164 Ashville Road 

Ms. Amanda Courson, charter member of Pathway Baptist Church, spoke and wants to clean 
the property herself. No one else spoke. Item was referred to Council. 

Public Hearing closed at 6:20 pm. 

OLD BUSINESS: 

There was none. 

NEW BUSINESS: 

14. Ordinance R23-000004: Consider a Rezoning Request from R-1 (Single Family Residential) 
to A-1 (Agricultural) at 1901 Hawkins Road 

Item has been pulled from the agenda and rescheduled for March 4, 2024. 

15. Resolution R23-000999: Consider Declaring Certain Conditions to be a Public Nuisance at 
1032 Montevallo Road 

Motion to approve Resolution 23-000999 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Ragland-Pierce. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Washington, 

5



Page 3 of 4 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting 

February 05, 2024 

Council member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member Latta, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

16. Resolution R24-000097: Consider Declaring Certain Conditions to be a Public Nuisance at 
1164 Ashville Road 

After a discussion with Ms. Courson, motion to approve Resolution 24-000097 made by 
Council member Washington, Seconded by Council member Dutton. Voting Yea: Mayor 
Miller, Council member Washington, Council member Turner, Council member Dutton, 
Council member Latta, Council member Ragland-Pierce 
 

17. Resolution 2024-02-01: Consider Approval of Budget Adjustment to Purchase Police 
Substation Table and Chairs for Training 

 

Motion to approve Resolution 2024-02-01 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Washington. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Washington, Council 
member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member Latta, Council member Ragland-
Pierce 
 

18. Resolution 2024-02-02: Consider Approval of Budget Amendment for Repairs at City Train 
Depot 

Motion to approve Resolution 2024-02-02 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Latta. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Washington, Council 
member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member Latta, Council member Ragland-
Pierce 
 

19. Resolution 2024-02-03: Consider Approval of Budget Amendment for Repairs at City Visitor 
Center 

Motion to approve Resolution 2024-02-03 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Ragland-Pierce. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Washington, 
Council member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member Latta, Council member 
Ragland-Pierce 
 

20. Resolution 2024-02-04: Consider Approval of Tax Abatement 

Motion to table Resolution 2024-02-04 for discussion at the next Finance Committee meeting 
made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by Council member Ragland-Pierce. Voting Yea: 
Mayor Miller, Council member Washington, Council member Turner, Council member Dutton, 
Council member Latta, Council member Ragland-Pierce 
 

21. Resolution 2024-02-05: Consider Adoption and Ratification of December 2023 
City Expenditures/Payables 

Motion to approve Resolution 2024-02-05 made by Council member Dutton, Seconded by 
Council member Latta. Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Washington, Council 
member Turner, Council member Dutton, Council member Latta, Council member Ragland-
Pierce 
 

22. Executive Session 

6



Page 4 of 4 
Minutes of Regular Council Meeting 

February 05, 2024 

Item has been pulled from the agenda. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

No one signed up. 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion to adjourn made by Council member Washington, Seconded by Council member Turner. 
Voting Yea: Mayor Miller, Council member Washington, Council member Turner, Council member 
Dutton, Council member Latta, Council member Ragland-Pierce 

The meeting adjourned at 6:43 pm. 

 

 

____________________________________   

David Miller, Mayor       

 

Attest: 

 

____________________________________ 

Toushi Artbitelle, City Clerk 

7



File Attachments for Item:

3. City Administrator Watson

Over-time Report

8



Department Hours- OT 
From 01/23/24 to 02/05/24

Department OT FDC Totals
148:50 31:15 180:05

Attendance on Demand 1.6.40.1088   Feb-07 24 01:17pm Page 1 of 1

CRT-11 0:57 0:57
DEV-50 5:49 5:49
FIRE1-26 14:00 31:15 45:15
LIB-70 6:00 6:00
POL-22 77:13 77:13
STR-80 44:51 44:51

9



File Attachments for Item:

11. A request for an Alcoholic Beverage License to Guerrero Mexican Grill at 7521 Parkwa 

Drive; Leeds, AL 35094

10



 
 

PUBLIC NOTICE 
 

ALC24-000001 - The Leeds City Council invites the public to a hearing to 

deliberate on the application for a 020 – Restaurant Retail Liquor License for 

Guerrero Mexican Grill located at 7521 Parkway Dr, Leeds, AL 35094. The 

hearing will take place on Tuesday, February 20, 2024, at 6:00 p.m. in the City 

Hall Annex Meeting Room, 1412 9th, Leeds, Alabama. 

Individuals wishing to express their support or opposition to this matter are 

encouraged to attend the meeting in person. Your participation is important, 

and your views will be considered during the proceedings. 

Date: Tuesday, February 20, 2024, Time: 6:00 p.m. Location: City Hall Annex 

Meeting Room, 1412 9th, Leeds, Alabama 

 

 

11



12



13



File Attachments for Item:

13. Resolution 2024-02-04: Consider Approval of Tax Abatement

14



Resolution Number 2024-02-04 

This Resolution is made this 20th day of February 2024 by the _Leeds City Council

 (the Granting Authority), to grant a tax abatement to C&B 

Piping, Inc. (the Company). 

WHEREAS, the Company has announced plans for a (check one): 

Ox  new project or  O major addition to their existing facility (the Project), located within the

jurisdiction of the Granting Authority; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Tax Incentive Reform Act of 1992 (Section 40-9B-1 et seq., Code of 
Alabama 1975) (the Act) the Company has requested from the Granting Authority an Abatement of 
(check all that apply): 

Ox all state and local noneducational property taxes,

Ox all construction related transaction taxes, except those local construction related transaction taxes
levied for educational purposes or for capital improvements for education, and/or 

O all mortgage and recording taxes; and

WHEREAS, the Company has requested that the abatement of state and local noneducational property 

taxes (if applicable) be extended for a period of  5 years, in accordance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, the Granting Authority has considered the request of the Company and the completed 
applications (copy attached) filed with the Granting Authority by the Company, in connection with its 
request; and 

WHEREAS, the Granting Authority has found the information contained in the Company’s application 
to be sufficient to permit the Granting Authority to make a reasonable cost/benefit analysis of the 
proposed project and to determine the economic benefits to the community; and 

WHEREAS, the construction of the project will involve a capital investment of $_
13,650,000

; and 

WHEREAS, the Company is duly qualified to do business in the State of Alabama, and has powers to 

enter into, and to perform and observe the agreements and covenants on its part contained in the Tax 
Abatement Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the Granting Authority represents and warrants to the Company that is has power under 
that constitution and laws of the State of Alabama (including particularly the provisions of the Act) to 
carry out the provisions of the Tax Abatement Agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Granting Authority as follows: 

Section 1. Approval is hereby given to the application of the Company and abatement is hereby 
granted of (check all that apply): 

Ox  all state and local noneducational property taxes,

15



Ox all construction related transaction taxes, except those local construction related transaction taxes
levied for educational purposes or for capital improvements for education, and/or 

O all mortgage and recording taxes

as the same may apply to the fullest extent permitted by the Act. The period of abatement for the 

noneducational property taxes (if applicable) shall extend for a period of 5 years measured as 

provided in Section 40-9B-3(a)(12) of the Act. 

Section 2. The governing body of the Granting Authority is authorized to enter into an abatement 
agreement with the Company to provide for the abatement granted in Section 1. 

Section 3. A certified copy of this resolution, with the application and abatement agreement, shall be 
forwarded to the Company to deliver to the appropriate local taxing authorities (if applicable) and to the 
Alabama Department of Revenue in accordance with the Act. 

Section 4. The governing body of the Granting Authority is authorized to take any and all actions 
necessary or desirable to accomplish the purpose of the foregoing of this resolution. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Leeds, Alabama, on 
the 20th day of February 2024. 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

___________________________________ ____________________ 
David Miller, Mayor Date 

ATTEST: AYES: ______ 
NAYS: ______ 
ABSENT: ______ 

___________________________________ ABSTAIN: ______ 
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

In my capacity as the City Clerk of the City of Leeds, hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly 
adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 20th day of February 2024. 

___________________________________ 
City Clerk 

16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



 

07079649.3  

TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT 

 

 This TAX ABATEMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is entered into as of the 

____ day of ________, 20___, by and among the CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA, a municipal 

corporation of the State of Alabama (the “City”), and C&B PIPING, INC., an Alabama 

corporation (the “Company”). 

  

Recitals 

 

WHEREAS, the City enthusiastically supports and encourages economic development in 

order to develop a solid and diverse local economy, to increase employment opportunities, to 

broaden the City’s tax base, to increase revenues, and to provide necessary and improved 

services to the citizens of the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, in order to promote local economic and industrial development, the 

Company plans to construct a new steel pipe fabrication and manufacturing facility (the 

“Project”) at a location recently purchased by the Company across the street from its existing 

facility, within the City, said real property being described in Exhibit A (the “Site”). 

 

WHEREAS, the Project will be operated by the Company as an “industrial or research 

enterprise,” as defined under Ala. Code § 40-9B-3(a)(10). 

  

 WHEREAS, the Company has submitted to the City an application in the form attached 

as Exhibit B (the “Application”), the City has made a cost/benefit analysis of the Project, and the 

City has agreed to grant an abatement of certain noneducational property taxes and construction-

related transaction taxes with respect to the Project. 

 

Agreement 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the City and the Company have agreed as set forth below: 

 

1. Abatement Grant.  The City hereby grants to the Company an exemption from 

liability for the following taxes with respect to the Project, which abatements may be availed of 

by the Company and any contractor or supplier with respect to the Project: 

 

(a) Noneducational Property Taxes: all property taxes imposed by the State of 

Alabama and the counties, municipalities, and other taxing jurisdictions of the State of Alabama 

that are not required to be used for educational purposes or for capital improvements for 

education; and 

 

(b) Construction-Related Transaction Taxes: the transaction taxes imposed by 

Chapter 23 of Title 40 of the Code of Alabama 1975, and any county, city, or other local 

construction-related (sales and use) transaction taxes on tangible personal property and taxable 

services to be incorporated into the Project, the cost of which may be added to a capital account 

48



 

07079649.3 2 

with respect to the Project, except for those local construction-related transaction taxes levied for 

educational purposes or for capital improvements for education. 

 

2. Application of the Abatement.  The noneducational property taxes and the 

construction-related transaction taxes abated pursuant to this Agreement shall be abated: 

 

(a) with respect to noneducational ad valorem taxes, for a period of [five (5)] 

years beginning on the date that bonds are initially issued by the City to finance the Project or, if 

no such bonds are ever issued, on the later of (i) the date when title to the Project, if any, is 

acquired by the City, or (ii) on the October 1st following the date on which the Company takes 

possession of and is treated as the owner of the Project for federal income tax purposes; and 

  

(b) with respect to noneducational construction-related transaction taxes, for a 

period beginning on the date of this Agreement and ending on the date on which the Project is 

placed in service. 

 

3. Estimated Value of Abatement.  Based in part upon the representations of the 

Company as to the relative costs of different elements comprising the Project and in part upon 

the Company’s knowledge of applicable tax rates within the City, the amount of each tax 

abatement herein granted is hereby estimated to be as set forth below; provided, however, that 

the actual amount of such abatements shall not be deemed limited by the good faith estimates 

thereof made below.  The estimated abatement amounts are as follows: 

 

(a) estimate of annual amount of noneducational property taxes abated: 

approximately $65,000; and 

 

(b) estimate of total amount of noneducational construction-related 

transaction taxes abated: approximately $750,000. 

 

4. Representations of the Company. 

 

(a) The Company represents that the predominant trade or business to be 

conducted at the Project is described in 2012 North American Industry Classification System 

Code 332996 as promulgated by the United States Government Office of Management and 

Budget, which NAICS Code designation entitles the Project to meet the definition of an 

“industrial or research enterprise” under ALA. CODE § 40-9B-3(a)(10). 

 

(b) The Company represents that the Applications contain good faith 

projections of (i) the amount to be invested in the Project, (ii) the number of individuals to be 

employed at the Project, initially and in the succeeding three years and (iii) the payroll at the 

Project, initially and in the succeeding three years; provided, that the City acknowledges and 

agrees that the granting of the abatements herein is not conditioned upon the ability of the 

Company to meet its projections contained in the Applications as to investment, job creation, or 

payroll. 

 

49



 

07079649.3 3 

5. Covenants of the Parties. 

(a) Pursuant to the requirements of ALA. CODE § 40-9B-6(c), the Company 

agrees to file a copy of this Agreement with the Alabama Department of Revenue within ninety 

(90) days after execution hereof. 

 

(b) Notwithstanding any provision contained herein to the contrary, this 

Agreement is limited solely to the abatement of all state, county, city, and other local taxes 

subject to abatement under the Tax Incentive Reform Act of 1992, as amended (the “Abatement 

Act”).  Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as a waiver by the Company of any greater 

benefits that the Project or any portion thereof may have available under provisions of the law 

other than the Abatement Act. 

6. Miscellaneous. 

(a) Each party to this Agreement hereby represents and warrants that the 

person executing this Agreement on behalf of the party is authorized to do so and that this 

Agreement shall be binding and enforceable when duly executed and delivered by each party.  

 

(b) This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 

parties named herein and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  This Agreement 

shall be assignable by the parties without consent. 

 

(c) This Agreement shall be construed, interpreted, and the rights of the 

parties determined in accordance with the laws of the State of Alabama, without reference to 

choice of law provisions of Alabama law, with the parties hereto agreeing that the venue for any 

legal action taken by one party against the other shall be in a state or federal court in the State of 

Alabama. 

 

(d) This Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of 

which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 

instrument, and facsimile and electronic (in PDF format) copies of this Agreement and facsimile 

and electronic (in PDF format) signatures by the parties shall be deemed effective. 

 

(Signature page follows) 

50



 

07079649.3  

 [Signature Page to Tax Abatement Agreement] 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Agreement to be executed in 

their respective names as of the date first written above. 

 

  

 
CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

By:       

 

Name:  David Miller  

 

Title:  Mayor 

 

 

 
C&B PIPING, INC. 

 

By:       

  

Name: Blake Williams 

 

Title: Vice President of Operations                                

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

51



 

07079649.3      A-1 

EXHIBIT A 

 

Real Property Description 

 

8771 Parkway Drive Leeds, Alabama 35094 

 

 

52



 

07079649.3 B-1 

EXHIBIT B 

 

Abatement Application 

 

(See attached) 

 

 

 

 

 

53



File Attachments for Item:

14. Resolution 2024-02-06: Consider Approval of Issuance of Restaurant Liquor License to 

Christian A. Millan Salinas, DBA Guerrero Mexican Grill at 7521 Parkway Drive; Leeds AL 

35094

54



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF LEEDS 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2024-02-06 

 

RESOLUTION REGARDING THE APPROVAL OF ABC LICENSED BUSINESS –  

GUERRERO MEXICAN GRILL 

7521 PARKWAY DRIVE 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Leeds regulates Licenses for those Business that have obtained approval 

to sell various alcoholic beverages, by the State of Alabama Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (“ABC”), 

inside the corporate limits pursuant to, without limitation, the City Business Licensing Ordinance, as 

amended; and 

 

WHEREAS, Christian A. Millan Salinas, as the Applicant, d/b/a Guerrero Mexican Grill LLC 

has made application to the ABC Board to allow the Restaurant Retail Liquor license for the business 

location at 7521 Parkway Drive; Leeds AL 35094. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds that: 

 

1. The Recitals above are true, correct, approved and included herein as if fully set forth. 

2. The City hereby approves/denies the application (as attached) of ABC classification Restaurant 

Retail Liquor at 7521 Parkway Drive; Leeds AL 35094 for the subject Applicant. 

3. The Mayor and staff shall have the full authority to do those things, perform those functions, 

make such decisions, and to sign necessary documentation in order to carry out and fully 

complete the actions so authorized herein. 

  

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 20th day of February 2024 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA: 
  

 
___________________________________   __________________________         

DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE 
  
         AYES:   ______ 
ATTEST:        NAYS:   ______ 
       ABSENT FROM VOTING:  ______ 
___________________________________             ABSTAIN:   ______ 

CITY CLERK     
  

In my capacity as City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was 

duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 20th day of 

February 2024. 
  
________________________________ 
Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 
 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



File Attachments for Item:

15. Resolution 2024-02-07: Consider Participation with Heidelberg Materials to make 

Application for Climate Pollution Reduction Grant

68



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF LEEDS 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2024-02-07 

 

AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION WITH HEIDELBERG MATERIALS, INC. TO MAKE APPLICATION 

FOR CLIMATE POLLUTION REDUCTION GRANTS 

 

WHEREAS, the EPA’s Climate Pollution Reduction Grants (CPRG) were authorized pursuant to Section 60114 of the 

Inflation Reduction Act, providing for Phase 1 noncompetitive planning grants and for Phase 2 competitive 

implementation grants (the “Grants”); and 

 

WHEREAS, Heidelberg Materials, Inc. (Heidelberg) has requested to be a partner with the City to make application for 

the Grants with an aim to advance environmental sustainability at its Leeds plant through implementation of two projects: 

1. Alternative Fuels Receiving, Handling and Dosing; 

2. Carbon Capture and Storage System. ; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Heidelberg proposal presents an opportunity to the City of Leeds for a public-private partnership that 

would ultimately provide for the implementation of environmentally sound measures at the Heidelberg plant resulting 

in a true public benefit to the City residents and to the public in general; and 

 

WHEREAS, with the significant involvement of Heidelberg, the City’s participation in the Grant process would require 

the City to be the local government Federal Grant Applicant subject to various federal and state administrative 

requirements and conditions; and 

 

WHEREAS,  Heidelberg has prepared a grant proposal attached hereto setting forth significant project points including 

Project Descriptions, Grant deadlines, a proposed project timeline, suggested budgetary needs, and Grant requirements. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds that: 

 

1. The Recitals above are true, correct, and included herein as if fully set forth. 

2. The City’s participation in both phases of the EPA’s Climate Pollution Reduction Grants (CPRG) program 

pursuant to Section 60114 of the Inflation Reduction Act is hereby approved. 

3. The Grant proposal as presented by Heidelberg Materials Inc. is hereby approved as presented, and the City 

hereby authorizes the proposed partnership with Heidelberg throughout the Grant application and process. 

4. The Mayor and staff shall have the full authority to do those things, perform those functions, make such 

decisions, and to sign necessary documentation in order to carry out and fully complete the actions so authorized 

herein. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Leeds, Alabama on this the 20th 

day of February, 2024. 

  AYES:       

  NAYS:       

  ABSENT FROM VOTING:    

  ABSTAIN:      

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA 

 

        

David Miller, MAYOR     DATE 

 

ATTEST:   

      City Clerk 

 

In my capacity as the City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the 

City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 20th day of February 2024. 

  ___________________________________ 

  Toushi Arbitelle, City Clerk 

69



70



The Heidelberg Materials cement plant is located just east of Birmingham in Leeds, AL.  It serves the growing 
Southeast market, including Alabama, Georgia, South Carolina, Tennessee, and Mississippi.  This market region’s 
population is conservatively forecast to grow 30% in the next 25 years.  The Leeds plant has been producing 
Portland cement since the early 1900’s, starting operations in 1905 as Standard Portland Cement.  The plant’s rated 
clinker capacity is 772,000 tons per year, which requires the mining and processing of 1.05 million tons of limestone.  

One of Heidelberg Materials environmental and sustainability goals includes replacement of fossil fuel with low-
carbon alternative fuels and reduce clinker substitution rates in the cement to reduce carbon intensity from its 
plants.   In relation to this, Heidelberg Materials aims to advance environmental sustainability at its Leeds plant 
through implementation of two projects:

1. Alternative Fuels Receiving, Handling and Dosing; 

2. Carbon Capture and Storage System. 

These projects, if funded by the Environmental Protection Agency’s (EPA) CPRG, align with Heidelberg's commitment 
to reducing the carbon intensity of its cement production process. Our focus is on reaching < 400 kg CO2/mt 
cement by 2030 at this Leeds Cement plant.

Heidelberg Materials Project
Advancing Sustainable Practices at Heidelberg Materials' Leeds Plant

01.30.20242 Advancing Sustainable Practices | Leeds, Alabama | EPA CPRG | Heidelberg Materials 

71



72



73



1. Install an Alternative Fuels Receiving, Handling and Dosing 
System for low-carbon alternative fuels:

1. Explore viable alternative fuel materials for the cement 
production process.

2. Evaluate the max alternate fuel substitution rates in existing 
kiln.

3. Assess the feasibility and compatibility of integrating these 
alternative fuels into the existing kiln operations.

Project Objectives

2. Reduce carbon intensity in the cement production process 
(< 400 kg CO2/mt cement by 2030):

1. Feasibility study will be conducted to gather information 
about sequestering carbon dioxide in coal seems.

2. If found feasible, Heidelberg will move to next phase for a 
detailed study and development plan to implement a state-
of-the-art “modular” Carbon Capture and Handling System.

Advancing Sustainable Practices at Heidelberg Materials' Leeds Plant

01/30/20245

Project Phases:

Each project is divided into five phases to 
systematically address various aspects of

1. Alternative Fuels Receiving, Handling, and 
Dosing; 

2. Carbon Capture, and Storage System at 
Heidelberg Materials' Leeds plant. 

This structured approach ensures 
comprehensive and efficient implementation, 
minimizing disruptions, optimizing functionality, 
and facilitating long-term environmental 
sustainability goals.

Phase 1: Project Initiation and Planning

Phase 2: Design and Engineering

Phase 3: Construction and Installation

Phase 4: Testing and Commissioning

Phase 5: Project Monitoring and Reporting

Advancing Sustainable Practices | Leeds, Alabama | EPA CPRG | Heidelberg Materials 

74



Job Creation: The project will create new employment 
opportunities during the construction phase and ongoing 
maintenance, contributing to economic growth in Leeds.

Environmental Improvement: The reduction in carbon 
intensity will lead to improved air quality and reduced 
environmental impact, directly benefiting the health and 
well-being of the local community in the City of Leeds.

Community Engagement: Heidelberg Materials will engage 
with local residents to provide information on the project, 
fostering transparency and community support.

Project Impact on Local Community
Economic Growth: The project will stimulate economic 
growth through job creation and increased sustainability, 
making Alabama an attractive location for environmentally 
conscious industries.

Sustainable Practices: Leeds will serve as a model for 
Alabama’s sustainable practices in cement production, 
contributing to the city's reputation as an environmentally 
responsible community.

Educational Opportunities: Heidelberg Materials commits 
to collaborating with local educational institutions to provide 
learning opportunities related to sustainable practices and 
alternative fuels.

Local Impact

01/30/20246

Benefits for the City of Leeds

Advancing Sustainable Practices | Leeds, Alabama | EPA CPRG | Heidelberg Materials 

75



76



Connect with Lisa Edwards at 
ADEM to submit project 
information for inclusion in the 
Priority Climate Action Plan 
(PCAP).  The PCAP must be 
submitted to EPA by March 1, 
2024.  a Comprehensive Climate 
Action Plan is due to EPA in June 
2024.

Next Steps

Coordinate grant application to 
EPA.  As a coalition, the City of 
Leeds will act as prime applicant 
and submit our final application 
through grants.gov.  Heidelberg 
Materials has a dedicated Grants 
Management Office that can assist 
with coordinating the scope of 
work, filing forms and creating a 
budget. Implementation grant 
applications are due to EPA by April 
1, 2024.

Awards are anticipated in July 
2024.  If this project should be 
selected, Heidelberg Materials 
will host a kick-off meeting in 
collaboration with the City of 
Leeds. Implementation of phase 
1 of the project could begin in 
the Fall of 2024.  

Creating the Coalition

01/30/20248 Advancing Sustainable Practices | Leeds, Alabama | EPA CPRG | Heidelberg Materials 

77



78



79



80



Heidelberg Materials Sustainability Objectives

01/30/202412

Heidelberg Materials is committed to operating in a safe and environmentally responsible manner and actively advocates for the 
use of resilient construction materials and supports sustainable construction practices.  The Company advocates for science-
based research to drive innovation and deliver long-term results. The labs are busy working on the next generation of sustainable 
building materials that will have a lower environmental footprint and bring us closer to our net zero goal. As Heidelberg Materials 
invests in research, the majority goes towards our goal of carbon-neutral concrete by 2050.

81



File Attachments for Item:

16. Resolution 2024-02-08: Consider Budget Amendment to Purchase City Fire Truck

82



Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF LEEDS 

RESOLUTION NO.: 2024-02-08 

AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE PUCHASE OF A SUTPHEN FIRE TRUCK  

 

WHEREAS, the purchase of a new City of Leeds Fire Truck will take approximately 4 years to be 

constructed following the City’s authorization to make such a purchase; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City is in need of a new replacement Fire Truck especially considering the lead 

time necessary for such a purchase; and 

 

WHEREAS, Sutphen has provided its proposal to purchase said equipment as attached; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fire Chief has recommended that based on the large wait time the attached 

proposal (Exhibit A) be chosen and that the City authorized the full execution of the necessary supporting 

documentation. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Leeds that: 

 

1. The Recitals above are true, correct, approved and included herein as if fully set forth. 

2. Subject to approval of the Fire Chief, the City hereby approves the acquisition of a Sutphen Fire 

Truck, based on specifications as set forth within the attached proposal provided  in the Attachment 

thereto.  

3. The payments for the subject equipment shall be made from City reserve accounts and requires a 

City budget adjustment. 

4. The Mayor, staff and City attorneys shall have the full authority to do those things, perform those 

functions, make such decisions, and to sign necessary documentation in order to carry out and fully 

complete the actions so authorized herein. 

 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 20th   day of February 2024. 

 

CITY OF LEEDS, ALABAMA: 

 

 

___________________________________   __________________________         

DAVID MILLER, MAYOR               DATE 

 

       AYES:    ______ 
ATTEST:      NAYS:    ______ 

       ABSENT FROM VOTING: ______ 
___________________________________  ABSTAIN:   ______ 

TOUSHIE ARBITELLE, CITY CLERK     

 

As the City Clerk of the City of Leeds, I hereby certify that the above Resolution was duly adopted by the 

City Council of the City of Leeds at a regular meeting held on the 20th  day of February 2024. 

 

 

___________________________________ 

CITY CLERK 

 

83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105


	Top
	1.	Minutes from February 05, 2024
	2-a Regular Council Meeting Minutes 02-05-2024

	2.	Mayor - Miller
	3.	City Administrator - Watson
	3-b Overtime report 01-23-2024 to 02-05-2024

	4.	City Clerk - Arbitelle
	5.	Police - Irwin
	6.	Fire -  Parsons
	7.	Court - Roberts
	8.	Building Safety - Williams
	9.	Public Works - Warren
	10.	Social Services - Bryan
	11.	ALC24-000001: Restaurant Liquor License @ Guerrero Mexican Grill
	4-a Beverage case public notice
	4-a1 Beverage Liquor License for Guerrero - PD report
	4-a1 Beverage Liquor License for Guerrero - FD report

	12.	Executive Session - Economic Devleopment
	13.	R2024-02-04: Consider Approval of Tax Abatement (C&B Piping)
	7-g R2024-02-04 C&B Piping Tax Abatement Resolution - 5 yrs
	7-g0 R2024-02-04 C&B Piping Tax Abatement Application
	7-g1 C&B Piping Project 5yr Abatement
	7-g2 C&B Piping Tax Abatement Agreement - 5 yr

	14.	R2024-02-06: Restaurant Liquor License @ Guerrero Mexican Grill
	8-a R2024-02-06 ABC Beverage Liquor License - Guerrero Mexican Grill
	8-a1 Beverage case application_Redacted

	15.	R2024-02-07: Sponsor CPRG Grant to benefit Heidelberg
	8-b R2024-02-07 Approval for EPA Grant application with Heidelberg Material
	8-b1 R2024-02-07 CPRG City of Leeds - Heidelberg Overview_Redacted

	16.	R2024-02-08: Budget Amendment - Fire Truck - Condition: Funds to be placed into Treasury Management Reserve until time of payment.
	R2024-02-08 Leeds - Fire truck purchase
	Fire truck proposal

	Bottom



